

# S. J. McKee Archives



## Marionne Scott fonds

http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8854

| Part Of:              | RG 1 Brandon College fonds |
|-----------------------|----------------------------|
| Description Level:    | Sub-series                 |
| Series Number:        | MG 2 2.29                  |
| Accession Number:     | 23-2008, 3-2009            |
| GMD:                  | multiple media             |
| Date Range:           | 1926-1934; 1941            |
| Physical Description: | 1 photograph album         |
|                       | 1 graduate's book          |
| Physical Condition:   | Very good                  |

History / Biographical:

> Marion (Marionne) Louise Scott was born January 13, 1913 at Ste. S, Parkview Block, Brandon, MB to Annie Louisa Lawson and David Henry (Harry) Scott. She attended St. Michael's Academy and Brandon College (Arts, Class of 1933), graduating with a teching certificate. At some point following her graduation she moved to Toronto, living with her Aunt and Uncle Olive and Keith Murphy, while working for Massey Harris. Eventually Marionne became Private Secretary to the president James Duncan. She also worked with E.P. Taylor and Colonel Phillips during her duration with the company.

Marionne met her husband Robert (Roy) Warden Jamieson through friends at the Parkdale Canoe Club, which is now the Boulevard Club on Lakeshore Avenue in Toronto. They were married on December 26, 1944. Following their retirement, Marionne and Roy spent their winters in Florida.

Marionne Scott Jamieson died on July 20, 1990 in Mississauga Ontario. Both she and her husband are buried in Park Lawn Cemetery at Bloor Street and Prince Edward Drive in west Toronto.

A number of the individuals identified in the photographs are members of Marionne's extended family or friends. Basic biographical information for both side of her family are below. Additional biographical information on the Lawson and Scott families is available at the McKee Archives.

#### Maternal relatives:

William Lawson was born c. 1849 in Markham Township, Ontario where his parents had settled from England. In September 1875 he married Alice Brunskill (born c. 1854) in Buttonville, Ontario. The couple settled on a farm at Aurora, Ontario before come west in 1892. Lawson and his family settled in the Hayfield district south of Brandon where he farmed until c. 1916. During his farming years, Lawson made a number of trips to Scotland and Ireland for the Manitoba government to secure immigrants. After retiring from farming, Lawson became an agent for the Manufaturers' Life Insurance Company. Lawson's brother, Reverend Thomas Lawson, organized the first Methodist congregation in Brandon.

William Lawson and Alice Brunskill had seven children:

William Ernest (married Maragret Louise Conling 23/11/1904 in Souris, MB)
Clarkson Brunskill (married Florence?)
Annie Louisa (married David Henry (Harry) Scott 29/06/1910 in Brandon, MB)
Alice May (married Arthur Ferrier Valens 27/06/1912 in Winnipeg, MB)
Fred J. (married Lottie C. Gibb 18/04/1906 in Selkirk, MB)
Frank Hill (married Cora Ethel Cunningham 11/03/1914 in Oakland)
Olive Gertrude (married William Keith Murphy 25/12/1923 in Brandon, MB)

#### Paternal relatives:

David Hunter Scott was born in 1851 in Brampton, Ontario. After completing his education he became a telegraph operator and then deputy postmaster for his hometown. In 1873, he moved to Manitoba, settling at Meadow Lea, where he took up a homestead. After fifteen years engaged in farming, Scott moved on to become a representitve for an implement manufacturing company. In 1892, he moved to Brandon to become manager of the Brandon Times newspaper. Four years later he founded D.H. Scott and Son, a real estate and insurance business he operated with his son David Henry until his death in September 1943.

David Hunter Scott married Anne Jane Lipsett (born 1854) of Meadow Lea, MB on May 24, 1876. Together they had ten children:

John Frederick Robert Wesley David Henry (Harry) (married Annie Louise Lawson 26/06/1910 in Brandon, MB) William James Caroline (married Christopher Russell Heise) Annie Louise (married Alexander Ferguson (died 1927), married Nettleton Whitby Kerr) Mary Emaline (married David Gordon Bawtinheimer) Lillian Georgina (died August 9, 1931) Josiah Aikens (died during World War I) Reginald Jacob (married Norma May Hughes 16/08/1915 (Reginald died during World War I))

#### Custodial History:

The photograph album and graduate's book were sent to Alumni Relations by Ruth L. Murphy on March 31, 2004. Both items had been in the possession of Marionne Scott, passing to her husband Robert Jamieson upon her death. When Jamieson died the items came into the possession of Ruth Murphy, whose husband was Marionne's first cousin. Carla Eisler, Alumni Relations, transfered the photograph album to the Archives on January 15, 2008, and the graduate book on January 8, 2009.

#### Scope and Content:

Fonds consists of a photograph album created by Marionne Scott. The majority of the photographs cover the period 1926-1933, and are of family members, friends, and classmates at both St. Michael's Academy and Brandon College. They were taken in Brandon and at a number of other locations that Marionne visited. There are three loose photographs, taken by R.M. Coleman, that were taken at the wedding of Vivian Eva? and Reginald Stanley Stark, June 7th, 1941 at St. Matthews Cathedral and the Prince Edward Hotel.

The graduate's book consists of notes, signatures, newsclippings, photographs, programs, convocation documents, graduation cards, reunion descriptions and the 1932 general information booklet for Brandon College.

| Notes:       | History/Bio information taken from the Brandon Daily Sun, the 1901 and<br>1911 Canadian Census, the Manitoba Vital Statistics website, and the<br>Brandon Cemetery website. Additional biographical information provided<br>by Ruth Murphy. Description by Christy Henry. |
|--------------|---|
|              |   |
| Name Access: | Esther Magdalene Moore  |
|              | Brandon College   |
|              | St. Michael's Academy   |
|              | Windsor Golf course   |
|              | Eleanor Wrye  |
|              | Katherine Harvey  |
|              | Marg Harvey   |
|              | Betty Harvey  |
|              | Helen Jamieson  |
|              | Marionne Scott  |
|              | Dot McArdle   |
|              | Teddy McArdle   |
|              | Parkview Steps  |
|              | Leta Valens   |
|              | David Henry (Harry) Scott   |
|              | Brandon CNR depot   |
|              | Genevieve Carey   |
|              | Vivian Muldoon  |
|              | Olive Murphy  |
|              | Brandon College tennis courts   |
|              | Winnipeg Beach  |
|              | Lake Clementi   |
|              | G. Finnegan   |
|              | Barbara Yeagar  |
|              | Boundary Park   |
|              | Noxage  |
|              | Gimili Beach  |
|              | Gimili boats  |
|              | Gimili lighthouse   |
|              | Fred Lawson   |
|              | Keith Murphy  |
|              | Evelyn Lawson?  |
|              | Marg Paterson   |
|              | Madeleine Donaldson   |
|              | Kentucky Home   |
|              |   |
|              | Sister Raymond<br>Reverend Mother Sister Madeleine  |
|              |   |
|              | Sister Louise   |
|              | Doug Hughes   |
|              | Curly Ross  |
|              | Charles Wilcox  |
|              | Bill Fletcher   |
|              |   |

Dud Crawford George MacGregor Gordon MacDougal Amy Gainer Charles Campbell Lake Percy Ruth Bingham Marie Evans Jean Hitchings Mary Anne Maltman (Mickey) Thelma Stoodley Lois Gainer Helen Isobel Duncan? Kay Underwood Monte Gilchrist Ethel Rolston Jack Ellis Gordon Watson Bob Rolston Ruth Tully Alberta Griggs Tom Dunlop Mary Coutts Elleda Levitt Aud Rolston Mitchell fence Marg Buchanan Margaret Draper Brandon College rink Sydney Pechet George Duncan Wilkie John Odin Erik Runehjelm? Robert McNeil Lonesome Little Dolls Alys Hunter Marg Sutton Alixe Ferguson Annie Louise Scott Hugh Kennedy Cecil Ryder Dot Pritchard Alma Cadieux Watrous

Pearl Gainer Manitou beach Anne Bacon Anne Lunam Norma James Edna Graham Peggy Bunting Gil Watson Nan Wilkinson Waldo Wheten Anne Sunam? Marion Champlin Bob Wheten Kermit Jones Bea Nicholson Lake Minnedosa Ev Ross Jean Bennest (Cordelia) Del Dunkin Lucille Mann Kay Fitzpatrick Ken Hall Jean Sutherland Archie McLachlan Herbert Watson McDowell (Waddie) Guelph memorial building Cayuga Brocks monument Laura Secord monument **Burrell Hecock monument** Clarke Lawson Dundern Castle William Lawson Luva Lewis' cottage Indianola beach McMaster University campus Wasaga beach Fred Murphy York Downs Golf Club **Ruth Thornton** Mayme Matthews Kay Robertson Amy Edwards Gigolettes Grace Armstrong

|                   | Grace Hopkins  |
|-------------------|--|
|                   | Dorreene McGuinness                                  |
|                   | Eleanor McKinnon                                     |
|                   | Viola Olmstead                                       |
|                   | Florence Simpson                                     |
|                   | Ruth Wade  |
|                   | Charles Vernon Myers                                 |
|                   | Christina Molberg                                    |
|                   | Paul Bugg  |
|                   | Vivian Stark   |
|                   | Reginald Stanley Stark                               |
| Subject Access:   | Cappy Ricks<br>Education                             |
|                   | elephant walk  |
|                   | nuns   |
|                   | dance revue costumes                                 |
|                   | student activities                                   |
|                   | class of 1933  |
|                   | Class of 1930  |
|                   | lit chorus   |
|                   | y steps  |
| Storage Location: | MG 2 Brandon College Students<br>2.29 Marionne Scott |



## 000 and 100 Blocks of Ninth Street

## http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9227

| Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| Item Number:          | 1-2002.3.1CA10               |
| Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| Date Range:           | 1967                         |
| Physical Description: | 2 1/2" x 2 1/2"              |
| Material Details:     | Negative                     |
| History /             |                              |
| Biographical:         |                              |
| Clement Block built   | 1910.                        |

Custodial History:

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

[West side of Ninth Street, between Rosser Avenue and Pacific Avenue]

| Notes:             | Clement Block; Two Mckenzie buildings.                                |
|--------------------|---|
| Name Access:       | 000 and 100 Blocks of Ninth Street                                    |
|                    | Clement Block   |
|                    | Brown's Pharmacy  |
| Subject Access:    | downtowns   |
|                    | businesses  |
|                    | merchants   |
|                    | Brandon Street Scenes After 1940                                      |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials. |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |





## http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9513

| Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| Item Number:          | 1-2002.3.1EA3(1)             |
| Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| Date Range:           | July 27,1959                 |
| Physical Description: | 2 1/2" x 2 1/2"              |
| Material Details:     | Negative                     |

Custodial History:

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

This image shows various commercial buildings located on the east side of the 100 block of 10th Street.

Businesses shown include the Bank of Montreal, Barclay's Shoe Store, Carlton Cafe, and Ted Heming Jewellers

| Notes:             | [Mr. Stuckey put three negatives and three prints in same envelope. We have separated them and numbered the negatives EA3(1), EA3(2) and EA3(3), and the prints EA3(1a), EA3(2a), EA3(3a).] |
|--------------------|---|
| Name Access:       | 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block   |
|                    | Bank of Montreal  |
|                    | Barclay's Shoe Store  |
|                    | Carlton Cafe  |
|                    | Ted Heming Jewellers  |
| Subject Access:    | businesses  |
|                    | banks   |
|                    | shoe stores   |
|                    | cafes   |
|                    | jewellers   |
|                    | Brandon business buildings & facilities after 1940  |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials.   |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |





http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9514

| Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| Item Number:          | 1-2002.3.1EA3(1a)            |
| Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| Date Range:           | July 27,1959                 |
| Physical Description: | 3 1/4" x 4 1/2"              |
| Material Details:     | Photograph                   |

Custodial History:

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

This image shows various commercial buildings located on the east side of the 100 block of 10th Street.

Businesses shown include the Bank of Montreal, Barclay's Shoe Store, Carlton Cafe, and Ted Heming Jewellers

| rionning contonoro |   |
|--------------------|---|
| Notes:             | [Mr. Stuckey put three negatives and three prints in same envelope. We have separated them and numbered the negatives EA3(1), EA3(2) and EA3(3), and the prints EA3(1a), EA3(2a), EA3(3a).] |
| Name Access:       | 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block   |
|                    | Bank of Montreal  |
|                    | Barclay's Shoe Store  |
|                    | Carlton Cafe  |
|                    | Ted Heming Jewellers  |
| Subject Access:    | businesses  |
|                    | banks   |
|                    | shoe stores   |
|                    | cafes   |
|                    | jewellers   |
|                    | Brandon business buildings & facilities after 1940  |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials.   |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |
|                    |   |





### http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9515

| Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| Item Number:          | 1-2002.3.1EA3(2)             |
| Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| Date Range:           | [196-?]                      |
| Physical Description: | 2 1/2" x 2 1/2"              |
| Material Details:     | Negative                     |
| Custodial History:    |                              |

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

This image shows various commercial buildings located on the east side of the 100 block of 10th Street.

Businesses shown include the Brandon Chamber of Commerce, Richardson Securities of Canada, Carlton Cafe, and Heming McCallum Jewellers

| Notes:             | [Mr. Stuckey put three negatives and three prints in same envelope. We have separated them and numbered the negatives EA3(1), EA3(2) and EA3(3), and the prints EA3(1a), EA3(2a), EA3(3a).] |
|--------------------|---|
| Name Access:       | 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block   |
|                    | Brandon Chamber of Commerce   |
|                    | Richardson Securities   |
|                    | Carlton Cafe  |
|                    | Heming McCallum Jewellers   |
| Subject Access:    | businesses  |
|                    | financial services  |
|                    | cafes   |
|                    | jewellers   |
|                    | Brandon business buildings & facilities after 1940  |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials.   |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |
|                    |   |

### Images





## 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block

### http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9516

| F  | Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|----|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| C  | Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| D  | Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| S  | Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| lt | tem Number:           | 1-2002.3.1EA3(2a)            |
| A  | Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| C  | GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| D  | Date Range:           | July 27,1959                 |
| F  | Physical Description: | 3 1/4" x 4 1/2"              |
| Ν  | Aaterial Details:     | Photograph                   |
| C  | Custodial History:    |                              |

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

This image shows various commercial buildings located on the east side of the 100 block of 10th Street.

Businesses shown include the Bank of Montreal, Barclay's Shoe Store, Carlton Cafe, and Ted Heming Jewellers

| Notes:       | [Mr. Stuckey put three negatives and three prints in same envelope. We have separated them and numbered the negatives EA3(1), EA3(2) and EA3(3), and the prints EA3(1a), EA3(2a), EA3(3a).] |
|--------------|---|
| Name Access: | 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block   |
|              | Bank of Montreal  |
|              | Barclay's Shoe Store  |
|              | Carlton Cafe  |
|              | Ted Heming Jewellers  |

| Subject Access:    | businesses  |
|--------------------|---|
|                    | banks   |
|                    | shoe stores   |
|                    | cafes   |
|                    | jewellers   |
|                    | Brandon business buildings & facilities after 1940                    |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials. |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |





http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9517

| Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| Item Number:          | 1-2002.3.1EA3(3)             |
| Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| Date Range:           | July 27,1959                 |
| Physical Description: | 2 1/2" x 2 1/2"              |
| Material Details:     | Negative                     |
|                       |                              |

History / Biographical:

The Specialty Shop [to the right of the "OK Used Cars" sign] was opened by Ms. Helen Lamont in 1953.

Custodial History:

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

This image shows commercial buildings located on the east side of the 100 block of 10th Street.

Businesses shown include Western Motors automobile dealership and a Specialty Shop

| Notes:             | [Mr. Stuckey put three negatives and three prints in same envelope. We have separated them and numbered the negatives EA3(1), EA3(2) and EA3(3), and the prints EA3(1a), EA3(2a), EA3(3a).] |
|--------------------|---|
| Name Access:       | 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block   |
|                    | Western Motors  |
| Subject Access:    | businesses  |
|                    | automobile dealerships  |
|                    | specialty shops   |
|                    | Brandon business buildings & facilities after 1940  |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials.   |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |





http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions9518

| Part Of:              | RG 11 Lawrence Stuckey fonds |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| Creator:              | L.A. Stuckey                 |
| Description Level:    | ltem                         |
| Series Number:        | 3.1                          |
| Item Number:          | 1-2002.3.1EA3(3a)            |
| Accession Number:     | 1-2002                       |
| GMD:                  | graphic                      |
| Date Range:           | July 27,1959                 |
| Physical Description: | 3 1/2" x 5"                  |
| Material Details:     | Photograph                   |
| History /             |                              |

Biographical:

The Specialty Shop [to the right of the "OK Used Cars" sign] was opened by Ms. Helen Lamont in 1953.

Custodial History:

For custodial history see the collection level description of the Lawrence Stuckey collection.

Scope and Content:

This image shows commercial buildings located on the east side of the 100 block of 10th Street.

Businesses shown include Western Motors automobile dealership and a Specialty Shop

| Notes:             | [Mr. Stuckey put three negatives and three prints in same envelope. We have separated them and numbered the negatives EA3(1), EA3(2) and EA3(3), and the prints EA3(1a), EA3(2a), EA3(3a).] |
|--------------------|---|
| Name Access:       | 10th Street Businesses - East Side of 100 Block   |
|                    | Western Motors  |
| Subject Access:    | businesses  |
|                    | automobile dealerships  |
|                    | specialty shops   |
|                    | Brandon business buildings & facilities after 1940  |
| Repro Restriction: | The McKee Archives is the copyright holder for the Stuckey materials.   |
| Storage Location:  | Lawrence Stuckey collection   |





## RG 2 Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba Association fonds

### http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4351

| Part Of:              | RG 2 Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba Association fonds |
|-----------------------|--|
| Description Level:    | Fonds  |
| GMD:                  | multiple media   |
| Date Range:           | 1884-1992  |
| Physical Description: | 9.46 m textual records; 1919 photographs & graphics      |

History /

Biographical:

Brandon, Manitoba was incorporated as a city in 1881. In 1882, led by Charles Whitehead and a small Board of Directors that included J.W. Vantassel, Charles Pilling, George Halse, J.E. Smith, William Johnson, R.T. Evans, and Thomas Lockhart, it was decided to hold an agricultural exhibition. These men were all involved in the farm business in one way or another, and they wanted an opportunity to help residents realize the agricultural potential of the region. In October of that year, the fledgling community held its first agricultural exhibition . The fair was held in downtown Brandon at what was known as "Market Square." Market Square was two acres of land located on Princess Avenue between Eighth and Ninth Streets. Due to poor weather, and the fact that not many people were ready to show animals and grain, there was a relatively small turnout. The following year was much improved. There were 730 entries into the exhibition. By 1884, the Board of Directors of the Brandon Agricultural Society, which was in charge of the exhibition, realized that they were in poor financial shape, to the point of being personally out of pocket. It was realized that October was not the best time for farmers to be leaving their farms to go to an exhibition. In 1888, it was decided to move the exhibition to the summer time, when it was much easier for people to attend.

The first Brandon Summer Fair was held in July 1889, and it was a resounding success. The Board of Directors had added many items of interest to appeal to the entire public, not just agricultural people. In 1892, the Western Agricultural and Arts Association (WAAA) was formally established to take over duties from the Brandon Agricultural Society. However, it was not until 1897 that the WAAA held its first meeting. There is no explanation as to why there is a five year gap between the formation and the first meeting of this organization. 1897 was the turning point of the Brandon Exhibition. The fair was now firmly established in Brandon, and the Board of Directors was instrumental in ensuring that it remained so. This was done by petitioning to both the municipal and provincial governments for grant money. As well, the Board booked midway and grandstand acts that would bring the city dwellers to the agricultural exhibition.

There were also early attempts at holding an agricultural exhibition in the winter. The first such attempt was in 1884. There was also a Spring Stallion show held in 1891. By 1904, however, a petition by J.D. McGregor had gone out to formally establish a winter exhibition. This effort also failed, but by 1906, it was decided by businessmen, politicians, and farm representatives in Brandon, including McGregor, to organize a winter fair. Rather than seeing this new fair as competition, the Board of Directors of the summer fair felt that it would complement their exhibition. The new fair would remain primarily agricultural. The first winter fair was held in 1906. While the two fairs were not amalgamated, they did share the same secretary-manager. The secretary-manager was responsible for the day to day management of the fair, as well as keeping track of meetings and decisions reached by the various fair boards and committees. In 1907, the Brandon Winter Fair and Livestock Association (BWFLA) was formed to act primarily as a land-holding joint stock company. The following year the Provincial Winter Fair and Fat Stock Association (PWFFSA), an entirely separate organization from the BWFLA, was formed to manage the activities of the winter fair. The PWFFSA name was soon changed to the Manitoba Winter Fair and Fat Stock Association (MWFFSA).

Rv 1906 Rrandon could hoast two full size exhibitions one in the summer and one in the late

winter, both of which were considered to be premiere events. In 1908, the Brandon summer fair was renamed the Inter-Provincial Exhibition, and in 1912 it held it's first Traveller's Day, an event which would soon become an important addition to the fair and is still in existence today. It is thought that the name "Traveller's Day" came from the fact that it was held on a Saturday, a day when many people could travel to Brandon for the exhibition.

In 1913, Brandon was bestowed with the honour of hosting the Dominion Exhibition. This was a national exhibition sponsored by the federal government. It was held in a different city every year. There were several cities vying for the 1913 Dominion Exhibition, but it was Brandon that impressed the sponsors the most. With the government funds received for this honour, the Board of Directors supervised the building of a new grandstand, display buildings, and racetrack, as well as the general expansion and improvements to the fairgrounds.

In the spring of 1912, it was decided by the Board of Directors of the winter fair that the facilities they were currently housed in were inadequate for their needs. The mayor and city clerk of Brandon went to the provincial legislature in order to request that there be an amendment added to the Brandon city charter. This amendment would allow the city to guarantee bonds issued by the winter fair board to help pay for the construction of a new facility. This request was granted, and a \$70 000 addition was built next to the original winter fair building. The new building was opened in 1913.

Throughout the First World War, both the winter fair and Provincial Exhibition buildings were used for the war effort. There was one distinct difference however. The summer fair Board was able to negotiate a deal with the army that enabled it to reclaim the fair buildings during fair week. The winter fair, however, had to give up the idea of holding fairs in 1915 and 1916. It was not until 1917, that the winter fair was able to resume.

During this time, due to the financial problems that had beset the winter fair, the two exhibitions considered amalgamation. The Board of Directors of the winter fair felt that because they were the smaller of the two fairs, their interests would be swallowed up by the summer fair. The winter fair withdrew from the negotiations to amalgamate. With this rather sudden turn of events, the Board of Directors of the summer fair petitioned the government to be allowed to incorporate. This was granted, and in 1920, the WAAA was incorporated as the Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba. From 1920, the summer fair was officially known as the Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba. This was the first time that the summer fair was incorporated, and received the "status and financial assistance" that came with incorporation.

More problems beset the winter fair in the 1920s. In 1920, a fire burned down the winter fair pavilion, located at the south end of the winter fair buildings, and caused the Board to cancel the 1921 winter fair. It was not until 1922, that a new building was completed. By 1929, both fairs were well regarded throughout Canada. In 1929, a decade long Depression hit the west. While many fairs closed during this time, Brandon struggled to keep its open. The Directors of both fairs felt that the agricultural shows "encouraged excellence at a time when faith and enthusiasm were at a low ebb." The summer fair proved to be quite successful during the Depression, likely as a result of the few moments one was able to forget one's troubles while there. The winter fair was not quite as successful, although both fairs received government grants and work relief projects. There was little new entertainment in these exhibitions.

There were changes about to manifest themselves at the summer fair, however. While the winter fair had representatives from various associations on its Board of Directors, the summer fair Board of Directors was a small close-knit group of men. Citizens saw entry into this elite group as elusive and difficult. To ward off the possibility of the Board becoming a "self-sustaining clique," that only chose Directors from within, it was decided by several citizens to try and elect some new blood into the fair Board. In 1933, there was a general election for the Board. Instead of the usual men shuffling positions, there were forty-four nominations for the twenty positions. When the voting was all over, seven new men sat on the Board. Despite

some inner rumblings, especially on the summer fair Board over the next few years, both exhibitions survived the Depression.

During the Second World War the fairs once again were forced to operate under adversity. Once again, the buildings were requisitioned for the army, although they were released during fair week. The summer fair was forced to make several concessions, and the winter fair was relocated to the summer fair grounds for the duration.

The winter fair did not survive the Second World War intact. Due to financial reasons, in December of 1945, the Board of Directors turned the winter fair buildings over to the City of Brandon. By 1946, the BWFLA, which was the joint-stock land holding company, had ceased operations because the city now controlled the winter fair land and buildings.

The next fifteen years would be a time of rebuilding for both of Brandon's exhibitions. Children especially were more active participants in the agricultural exhibitions. The summer fair continued to diversify and look for new ways of entertaining the public at large. The winter fair remained primarily agricultural. By the end of the 1950s the winter fair, which was used to struggling, was now both successful and stable; and the summer fair, a perennial success, was starting to fade.

By 1969, both the winter and summer fair Boards had realized that amalgamation was the best possible decision, both practically and financially, for the future of the two fairs. On 29 October, 1969, the two exhibitions amalgamated to become the Manitoba Exhibition Association. The reconstituted Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba was now responsible for both the winter and summer fairs. A new building was erected on the summer fair grounds to house both of the exhibitions. On 2 April 1973, the Keystone Centre was officially opened at the winter fair, although it had been in use since October of the preceding year.

In 1970, Manitoba's Centennial, it was decided that an organization in Manitoba would receive the title of "Royal," as a way to celebrate the centennial. Although many organizations applied for the honour, it was the Brandon winter fair that received the accolades. The winter fair was bestowed with the title "Royal", and became known as the Royal Manitoba Winter Fair.

In 1975, a third exhibition was added, this time a purely agricultural fall show known as the Agricultural Exhibition, or AgEx. This fair was partly organized on behalf of the cattle growers, who found that the summer and winter fairs did not give them adequate time and space to properly show their cattle. The return to a fall show, which had not existed since 1888, would be the return to a purely agricultural exhibition. This show was to be primarily a show and sale event. On 3 November 1975, the first AgEx was opened to resounding success.

The Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba, the Royal Manitoba Winter Fair and AgEx are all still in existence in Brandon. They are regarded as three of the most important events to take place annually in the city.

Custodial History:

These files were housed with the Manitoba Exhibition Association until c1986 when they were transferred to the S.J. McKee Archives at Brandon University.

#### Scope and Content:

The fonds consists of textual records and photographs comprised of the records from the three annual exhibitions that are held in Brandon, Manitoba: the Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba, the Royal Manitoba Winter Fair, and the Agricultural Exhibition (Ag-Ex). The textual records include prize lists, programs, minutes, financial, administrative files, original results, scrapbooks, tickets, news releases, contracts, by laws, documents as well as a miscellaneous section. There are approximately 1846 photographs that include scenes from these three exhibitions. These records provide a unique perspective on the development of agriculture and rural life in southwestern Manitoba. Fairs such as these have been and remain prime media of farm improvement, technological and scientific advancement in rural Canada, and the promoters of country living. These fairs also reflected the long tradition inherited from Britain and Europe of country fairs as centers of entertainment, social interchange and diversion. These records are a principal source of information about the most broadly based vocational, entertainment and social events held on an annual basis in southwestern Manitoba over the last century. The records are vital to academic research on agriculture or fairs, individual biography, or community history.

| Notes:             | The RG 2 Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba Association finding aid was created by Karyn (Riedel) Taylor with the exception of Series 9 and the accompanying database, which were created by Donica Belisle. This finding aid was created in August 1999.  |
|--------------------|---|
| Name Access:       | Charles Whitehead   |
|                    | J.W. Vantassel  |
|                    | Charles Pilling   |
|                    | George Halse  |
| Subject Access:    | Brandon Agricultural Society  |
|                    | Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba   |
|                    | Royal Manitoba Winter Fair  |
|                    | Agricultural Exhibition   |
|                    | Brandon Manitoba  |
|                    | AgEx  |
| Repro Restriction: | Researchers are responsible for observing Canadian copyright restrictions.  |
| Finding Aid:       | Available   |
| Storage Location:  | RG 2 Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba Association fonds  |
| Storage Range:     | RG 2 Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba Association fonds  |
| Related Material:  | Additional records regarding the Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba, the<br>Royal Manitoba Winter Fair, and AgEx are housed at the Provincial<br>Exhibition of Manitoba Association offices. To gain access to these<br>records, it is necessary to contact the general manager of the Provincial<br>Exhibition of Manitoba Association. |

#### Arrangement:

The fonds is divided into sous-fonds by exhibition. There is a Provincial Exhibition sous-fonds, a Royal Manitoba Winter Fair sous-fonds, an Ag-Ex sous-fonds, and a Miscellaneous sous-fonds that holds information that could not be easily broken down into one exhibition. The arrangement is as follows:

RG 2 Provincial Exhibition Association of Manitoba fonds

RG2SF1 Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba

- 1.1 Documents
- 1.2 Minutes
- 1.3 Financial Records
- 1.4 Administrative Files
- 1.5 Prize Lists and Programs
- 1.6 News Releases
- 1.7 Original Results
- 1.8 Tickets
- 1.9 Photographs
- 1.10 Scrapbooks
- 1.11 Miscellaneous

#### RG2SF2 Royal Manitoba Winter Fair

- 2.1 Documents
- 2.2 Minutes
- 2.3 Financial Records
- 2.4 Administrative Files
- 2.5 Prize Lists and Programs
- 2.6 News Releases
- 2.7 Original Results
- 2.8 Tickets
- 2.9 Photographs
- 2.10 Scrapbooks
- 2.11 Miscellaneous
- RG2SF3 AgEx
- 3.4 Administrative Files
- 3.5 Prize Lists and Programs
- 3.6 News Releases
- 3.7 Original Results
- 3.9 Photographs
- **RG2SF4** Miscellaneous
- 4.1 Documents
- 4.2 Minutes
- 4.3 Financial Records
- 4.4 Administrative Files
- 4.9 Photographs
- 4.10 Scrapbooks
- 4.11 Miscellaneous